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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and midsized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-Pharmacy Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Group” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERE®|E

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB647,672,000, representing
an increase of 0.4% as compared with RMB645,3083,000 for the
previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB161,216,000 from RMB144,402,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB28.78 cents from RMB25.77 cents last year.

The achievements in 2018 were the results of joint effort of our
staff at all levels. As the state speeded up the reform of the health
care system and increased the anti-corruption effort in the area of
pharmaceutical distribution, we overcame the unfavorable factors
relating to increasing production cost, dropping drug prices,
restriction on prescription of medicines and rising raw material costs,
and achieved the goals of projects set out in the beginning of the year.
As such, the Board would like to share its view on the Company’s
competitive edges with shareholders since these edges would allow
the Company to achieve further success in the coming years.

Firstly, we continued to emphasize on sales and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products
to push our sales to a new height. While firmly focusing on the
sales target of one single product, namely, the Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEBEZB%), we exerted effort in increasing the sales of
mainline products, continued to strengthen academic promotion and
strived to explore uncharted markets while proactively organizing
and participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology
at state level. Meanwhile, we continued to increase the sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (#7575 4%F B %), our branded
product, and made further efforts in the production and marketing of
injecting drugs, including Edaravone injection (& H 25T §77%), which
propelled our sales to a new level.
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On the other hand, we emphasized on the research and development
of new drugs. We cooperated with a number of pharmaceutical
universities, research institutes and a number of experts in the field
of drug research and development and scholars and increased
investment in developing technologically advanced new drugs, with
independent intellectual property rights.

Moreover, we have strictly followed the management regulations
of the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice, established
a rigorous quality control system, applied quality concepts to
production management, and enhanced our efforts in quality control
throughout the production process. In connection with company’s
strategic development plan, we strictly implemented production
management, enhanced quality, reduced costs, increased efficiency,
so as to guarantee the supply of goods against rapid growth in sales.

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance
with internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim,
the Group has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened
internal training and sought professional advice from experts so as to
safeguard interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as
a whole.

Looking ahead, we will continue to adhere to our business philosophy,
that is, “focusing on technological innovation and serving the public
and endeavoring in the pursuit of health for people around the world”.
We will strive to become globalized and contribute to the healthiness
of the people around the world as the endeavor and pursuit of
“Changlong people”. Our ultimate goal is to achieve rapid growth for
“New Changlong”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2018 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
increased to RMB647,672,000 from approximately RMB645,303,000
while the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB161,216,000 from RMB144,402,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB28.78 cents from RMB25.77 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 & =B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1.  Tablets — valid until 28 January 2021

2.  Capsules — valid until 28 January 2021
3.  Bulk Drug (Gardema Extract) — valid until 28 January 2021
4. Membrane (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &

Extraction) — valid until 28 January 2021

5.  Pills (Condensate) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &
Extraction) — valid until 12 February 2020

6.  Bulk Drug (Fucoidan) — valid until 12 February 2020

7.  Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 30 January
2024

8.  Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

9.  Small Volume Parenteral Solutions — valid until 30 January 2024

10. API (Edaravone) — valid until 30 January 2024

11. Solution (External Use) — valid until 28 August 2022

12. Granules and Pills (Water Pills) — valid until 28 August 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group
and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year
of 2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the largest contributor of
revenue and its revenue reached our target level.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, the purchase and setting up of equipment and testing
works of HEMERER ML AR & T2 7], a wholly-owned subsidiary,
have completed and the accreditation of food production has passed
and we launched the product of Changbai Mountain wild walnuts
milk. With the continued development of pharmaceutical healthcare
field, Changlong Bio-pharmacy improve pharmaceutical research
and development continuously while investing in research and
development of food and healthcare field in order to provide better
service to our people and benefit human kind, providing a new profit
driver for the enhancement of the Group’s result.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s recorded
revenue amounted to approximately RMB647,672,000 (2017:
RMB645,303,000), an increase of approximately 0.4% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB161,216,000, representing an increase of 11.6% as compared
with RMB144,402,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings
per share amounted to RMB28.78 cents (2017: RMB25.77 cents),
representing an increase of RMB3.01 cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in
2018. It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to
the following reasons:

Firstly, we emphasized on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products,
thereby reaching our sales target.

Secondly, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version Good Manufacturing Practice, attached great importance to
staff training and strengthened the production management in 2018,
thereby bolstering the growth and development of the Group.

Thirdly, we continued to strengthen academic promotion, enhance
our understanding of clinical performance of various medicines and
explore the unique value of our products while proactively organizing
and participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at
national level.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fourthly, we further strengthened our efforts on integrating market
resources, encouraged reasonable mobility of personnel, unified the
price of products supplied and regulated sales practices. Focusing
on enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such
as soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in
order to identify new profit drivers.

Fifthly, we continue to strengthen the buildup of our sales teams, fill
up market gaps, and link staff recruitment and filling up market gaps
together with leadership responsibility system, increase the efforts
in developing new products and lay a solid foundation for better
corporate development.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately 82.2%, representing a 0.1% decrease as compared
with that of 82.3% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB58,188,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB24,008,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB375,480,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
approximately RMB335,128,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 57.97% of revenue in 2018, which represented a
6.04% increase from 51.93% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB28,450,000 from approximately
RMB47,165,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB158,340,000 (2017: RMB110,428,000) with
total borrowings of RMB2,350,000 (2017: RMB2,970,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had total assets of RMB1,554,841,000
(2017: RMB1,238,072,000) which were financed by current
liabilities of RMB375,484,000 (2017: RMB200,083,000), long term
borrowings of RMB1,100,000 (2017: RMB1,637,000), deferred tax
liabilities of RMB52,000 (2017: RMB Nil) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB1,133,025,000 (2017: RMB1,011,027,000).
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB158,340,000. As at 31 December 2018, the
ratio of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 27%
(2017: 18%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total
liabilities of RMB421,816,000 (2017: RMB227,045,000) by the
Group’s total equity and liabilities of RMB1,554,841,000 (2017:
RMB1,238,072,000). The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from
the total borrowings to total net assets was 0.2% (2017: 0.3%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 870 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and
services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 64, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments
from November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held
the position of deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and
secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Mr. Zhang Hong is the father of Mr. Zhang Yi, our executive director.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 55, male, is an executive director and general manager. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990; appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds a bachelor degree and is senior accountant a certified
accountant and certified estimator. From August 1990 to May 1995,
he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from
June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director and
equipment executive director and finance officer of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as executive director and chief finance officer of the
Company since March 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 54, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director.
He holds a master degree and senior engineer. From September
1988 to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University;
from February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in
Jilin University; from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief
engineer of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was
appointed as executive director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007;
appointed as deputy sale director of part of east China since 2010.
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Zhang Yi

Aged 38, male is an executive director and executive deputy general
manager, held a Master’s degree. He attended combined Bachelor’s
and Master’s degree programs in the clinical department of Jilin
University for seven years from September 2000 to July 2007. He
studied in the First Hospital of Jilin University from 2007 to 2008
and took up IMBA courses in Beijing Jiaotong University from 2009
to 2011. From 2011 to 2014, he worked as the General Manager
in Changchun Changyuan Pharmaceutical Industry. He has been
working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company
Limited as executive deputy general manager.

Mr. Zhang Yi is son of Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman and executive
director of the Company.

Xu Xiang Fu

Aged 49, male, held a tertiary qualification. He graduated from the
School of Medicine in Jilin, specializing in medicine, and is a senior
engineer. He has been working for Changlong Pharmacy since
1992 and is currently the Deputy Technical General Manager of
the Company. In 2015, he was awarded two patents for inventing
the“Methodology for Retrieving Fucoidan”and “A Methodology
for Retrieving Fucoidan”. In 2016, he participated in the project
of development and application in Haikun Shenxi Capsule and
was awarded the second-tier prize in Jilin Province Science and
Technology Award.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Gao Yong Cai

Aged 63, male, Mr. Gao is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He
has over 30 years of experience in audit and accounting services. He
is currently serving as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified
Public Accountant (¥£m & B A& S5HEIEI5FT). Prior to this, he was
a partner of Huinan County Audit Firm (B & &t EXKPT). He
worked at the Resources Bureau of Huinan County (%% E )
from 1974 to 1994.
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Gao Qi Pin

Aged 67,male, He is currently the Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral
students in the research and development centre of Changchun
University of Chinese Medicine. He graduated from Shenyang
Pharmaceutical University with a Master’s degree in 1982. He was the
Deputy Dean and researcher of the provincial Academy of Sciences
for Chinese Traditional Medicine from 1982 to 1998, during which
he had been working in Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan for two
years and obtained the Doctoral degree after working in the University
of Tromsg in Norway for more than four years. He was the Head
of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party
committee from 1998 to 2006. And he is now the Professor and
Lecturer for Doctoral students of Changchun College of Traditional
Chinese Medicine, the Officer of Key Laboratory of Chinese Medicine
Macromolecules in Jilin Province and the Officer of Key Research
Centre for Active Components of Chinese Medicines in the Ministry
of Education. He was the committee member of the eighth, ninth and
tenth Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission; the National New Drug
Appraisal Expert; Science Advancement Award Appraisal Expert
from the Ministry of Science, the Honoured President of provincial
medicine society, senior associate expert from Jilin Province and the
winner of special allowance from the State Council. He was once the
person in charge for more than 20 national, provincial and divisional
projects. He was involved in the research and development for three
new medicines (Infantile spleen-strengthening oral solution (/]\ 52 fi& j&
O AR&), Colon Recovery Capsule (4 15 B2 ), Ginseng Glycopeptide
Injection (AZH¥ERAEETR)), and initiated around 100 enhancements
of standard revision for medicines, which have been implemented
by our provincial enterprises. He possessed five invention patents.
As the first awardee, he won one top-tier provincial and divisional
prize, three second-tier prizes and a number of participant prizes.
He has reached a leading international level with certification on
the research studies of the structural effect and relationship among
ginseng polysaccharide, tremella polysaccharide, polysaccharide and
microsphere connectors. He was ranked the Outstanding Communist
Party model of the Work Committee for Organs Under Direct
Supervision for twice. His study background and working experience
are as follows: educated youth in remote villages (November 1968 to
August 1973); the student of the medicine department of Shenyang
Medical College (August 1973 to October 1976); the pharmacist
of the Jilin Provincial Institute (Baicheng District) for Drug Control
(October 1976 to October 1980); the Master’s degree postgraduate
of Shenyang Medical College (October 1980 to December 1982); the
Research Assistant, Research Associate, Researcher, Deputy Head,
Head, Deputy Dean of School of Research of Chinese Medicines of
the Jilin Province (December 1982 to March 1998), and among which:
the Research Assistant of Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan (August
1986 to August 1988); the Doctoral Postgraduate, Senior Visiting
Scholar and Guest Researcher in the University of Tromse in Norway
(October 1993 to March 1998); the Senior Pharmacist and Head
of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party
committee (March 1998 to March 2006); the Professor and Officer
of the research and development centre of Changchun University of
Chinese Medicine (March 2006 until now).
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Tian Jie

Aged 47, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been
working at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (FM& B2 2 E % F7) since March
1993 and has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is
currently serving as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.

SUPERVISORS

Yan Li Yu

Aged 48, male,held a tertiary qualification. He has been working
in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company
Limited since 1989 and is now the Superintendent of sales division
of Changlong Pharmacy. He worked in the material division of
Changlong Pharmcy from 1989 to 1994. He worked in the marketing
and sales division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1994 to 1996. He
worked in the material division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1996 to
2007. From 2007 until now, he has been working in the sales division
of Changlong Pharmacy.

Qiao Xiao Chun

Aged 43, female, held a tertiary qualification. She has been working
in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited
since 1994 and is now the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy
workshop of Changlong Pharmacy. She worked as a supporting
staff for Changlong Pharmcy from July 1994 to January 1997. She
was the Sales Manager stationed in Tianjin for Changlong Pharmacy
from 1997 to 2003. She assumed the position of Superintendent of
quality control division of Changlong Pharmacy from 2003 to 2012.
Between 2012 and 2014, she was the Merchandiser of production
supplies division of Changlong Pharmacy. She was the Deputy Head
of production management division of Changlong Pharmacy from
2014 to 2016. From 2017 until now, she is the Workshop Officer of
the solid pharmacy workshop of Changlong Pharmacy.

Wang Ying Xu

Aged 35, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin
Huatai Certified Public Accountants (F & EZR S TAISEEAT from
September 2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been
working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited and now serves as officer in finance department of the
Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 38, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. In 2018, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental
analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 47 to 124.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION R ERBSE
The following is a summary of the published results and the assets WU TAREBERAGEBULREERBE2H
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes 2 - THR FXHEEEERE - AMETBL

below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements. BB RERZ 2D -
Results E S
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Revenue PN 647,672 645,303
Profit before income tax M P15 %4 il A 186,323 172,768
Income tax expense Frig®isz it (25,107) (28,366)

Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~— AEE AR BIREIFE AE(L

attributable to owners of the Company H % ¥ 15 m 161,216 144,402
Assets and liabilities EEREE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Total assets BEE 1,554,841 1,238,072
Total liabilities BEfE (421,816) (227,045)
Net assets BEFE 1,133,025 1,011,027
BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, AR BEYMEE WYX - - BENME
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE HBUREBREE

ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and  RER - KAEBTLLEYMEE W - BEL
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set  REANEREE 2 EFEE D BIE R ITEHRE
out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively. MIFE16 ~ 1721

16 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 33 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB993,808,000 (2017: RMB870,828,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 15% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2017: 22%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 6% (2017: 8%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 48% (2017: 42%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 22% (2017: 15%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018)

Supervisors

Mr. Zhao Gang (Resigned on 24 June 2018)

Mr. Wu Wei Men (Resigned on 24 June 2018)
Mr. Wang Ying Xu

Mr. Yan Li Yu (Appointed on 6 June 2018)

Ms. Qiao Xiao Chun (Appointed on 6 June 2018)
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on
the boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the
date of this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen
Zhang Yi

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

BERFREEX

RO BFERREAE SR REE A HLIEAE
R B G A SR AT A (A A A A RIS L AE ]
MEARZEEATHAZEEFREEETE
3 o

EEREERROMESR

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H ARAEF &
ERTETHRAERARAREABEIE(TE
RBESRHEEN([EHRBEE])EXVEE)
MG - HERG RESFT R REEFRSEE
RBIZE 35215 - BHI AZ GRS L e &
KB NIREE R FTGEMIE F LT R 8 ([ GEM
EWREAI) E5.4616E5.67TIEFMIEESEEER
RIZEMBNE AN R R FraviEss KA R a0
T

Long positions in shares REBRHBHERR

Percentage of

total registered

Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital

Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares 1 48 33 0 B AR

S R 5 14 RERBE MHARERBESL MNBEDL

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
gk 5h & A EnlAA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 55
RBE EA EnlAA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX & A EREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
G AR AR A
REEM B HBME RERBE MHARERBESL MBS
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BV RREEREEAR(MZ) BEZEAA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have
any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the
Board of Directors.

Long positions in H shares
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Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

I 4B AR A

RERERE 514 HREE HHR Bt WEZ L

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 17.11 5.269
PR IZ EmAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11 2.498
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.
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The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 124 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 24 to 31 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have been given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience
to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as the family relationship
disclosed in the biographical details of directors and senior
management set out on pages 11 to 14 of this annual report, there is
no financial, business and family relationship among the members of
the Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, five regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Exeel
R ERTIAEAERGEH - FFRLE
ST

Meetings attended/Held

Directors BEE BHE BETEER
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SROAFEAE(FE) (6/6)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SR SR (6/6)
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang 2 M S A (6/6)
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REXEE (6/6)
Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018) wERE (ZT—N\FXANB

BEE) (2/6)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018) ‘mAELEs (ZE2E—N\EXNANAH

BEE) (2/6)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEMITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai mAKA A (6/6)
Ms. Tian Jie M2+ (6/6)
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018) SHEEE(ZE-N\FXANR

EEE) (2/6)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018) BEFZt(ZE—\FMHA

—+IMHEHT) (4/6)

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board
of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and
Ms. Tian Jie are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Mr. Zhang Hong.
The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year and
the quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:

SNEEe AR BREEMAENTES

ZEEFHES  BREVNE  RRSRAEE
NR(BREREXEIKERFRUKZEENZ
EABE) ARAEETERIFRTESE ZFHBIR
HER - FHEZEEREEIEER  flArTky
BRARAXfe#He  EFREZHRAIET X
SEEAMMTT 2 BRGRERIRRAEEFMN 27
HRE -

REE-_ZT— ) \FE+_A=+—HIFHFE
%ﬁ@m;E\@%ﬁT MRS o SRE Z @RI E
FOERINT ¢

Meetings attended/Held

Members 24= CHE BETEER
Mr. Gao Yong Cai KA S 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie Bz L 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-NFANBEZE)

on 8 June 2018) (172)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BE ¥zt (ZE— N \FMUA=+IEA

on 24 April 2018) BHE) (172)
Mr. Zhang Hong sRoAF A 2/2
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee REZE-T—N\F+-A=+—HILFE - Z
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and ZEG@FERTHEENSHERASFHMIEMSE
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration  H - W) T ASEE 2 HMBOR

policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Yong Cai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:

RERFEEARAZESHIILABATSERA
T YHEFSERLME - REZE SR
BEEEA  EEEXEKEE  HRLR  EAR
S EBEFRE -

T N\FTA=t-BUIHBEFE &

HE—

HLBERTTMAEH - TLRRZEEER
Witiw TEEGRE - KEABRMAK - B Z
BENRATESRBIFRNTESTZIZRAR

TR REE - BB 2R F RS T

Meetings attended/Held

Members j24=] EHE CETESE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai RIKA S 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie At 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-NFEXANBEZT)

on 8 June 2018) (1/2)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BEHLZ+H(ZE—N\FOA=-+MH

on 24 April 2018) BHE) (172)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang RN A 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms.
Tian Jie. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee
is Mr. Gao Yong Cai. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in business, legal, accounting and financial management in
the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:

ERZEENEEFEALBITNREEH - BX
x= 2%
==

Meetings attended/Held

Members 24= BHE CETESE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai mIKA S 4/4
Ms. Tian Jie At 4/4
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-NFEXANBEZT)

on 8 June 2018) (2/4)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BE¥LZ+(ZE—-N\FOA=-+MH

on 24 April 2018) BHE) (2/4)

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 38 to 46 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2018, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to
the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated
with its business activities and has implemented a practical and
effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and performance by
the Audit Committee and the Board. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is effective.
The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the present internal controls of the Group
are satisfactory. The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and is of the view that the system of
internal control adopted for the year is sound and effective. The Group
does not maintain its own internal audit team for cost-saving reason
but the work is shared between related parties in the company to
assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.

RIZE-N\F REMECETARACEERSE
HM15/NEHBERE -

R HBEE 12 I L By o B
EXeRARRARENANEERARREE2RE
Mo AERBBANES - EERERERXEE
MzER  YEEE—BERATMITZAERLZ
EERG  BREBMAEAIRIEEESE R
WZREERELS  ARAEREZEEGNESS
B AREE 2 8 RRAETR o RERERE
EGDBETERELETRISE AN -EFE
REBAEEBRHZEMRAG ZER  HAKHE
RAZAMERRENE - EFFCEHAR
ERRGZANNE - RRRFERRMA 2 AEBEEE
EoBRENAY - REEKA  AREBEFA
A A RRE R ERR - T2 ELE R 77 KR 1 B
ERZEERIAKRERREERARMEERSR
A

REEMRE
ARFICBIRGEM LR R Z 5 MR &
FBBAZER - BEARRES ZEZEHR
FEBRR 2 FRETPHRERRM - ARF)EE
BREERFEHBS - ARRECLERN AL
HEREEERARBAEBREEHN  LEFEM
ERRIEZEER -

FBERREINBITRRBF ARG EEISHE
o FAEERZEEIFHEFERGEEM
B AREEEMERREFERRBERS -

ARIRATR

AEEETHER BRACEEAED - MES
& RIS B R B (T YRR 7 B AR R
Al IEM ARG 2 S EARATA -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
T N\FFR

31



REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

32

ESEREE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Qiao Xiao Chun
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has complied with
the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 20 to the
GEM Listing Rules and the relevant information is set out below.

A. ENVIRONMENT

1. Emissions

The major raw materials used by the Group in production
are various kinds of Chinese herbal medicines and their
production and operation may have a minor effect on the
environment and the natural resources. The Group actively
fulfils its social responsibilities, always adheres to the
concept that development and environmental protection
are equally important and makes rational use of various
resources to protect the environment. The Company
strictly complies with the provisions of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China so as
to achieve saving energy and consumption reduction,
lowering discharges and improving efficiency, and try
our best to minimize the impact that the production and
operation process have on the ecosystem.

2. Use of resources

The Group also advocates the concept of green
production so as to achieve the target of energy saving,
consumption lowering and discharge reduction. The
Company saved various kinds of resources by optimising
the technological process, enhancing the technology
standard, using LED energy-saving lighting and cutting
down water consumption during the production process.
Moreover, with respect to the protection and recycling of
water resources, the Company adopted a recycle system
throughout the production process so as to reduce the
amount of water resources used.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
consumption in electricity, coal and water were:

Electricity: 3,893,066 kWh

Coal: 10,086 Tonnes
Water: 75,959 Tonnes
3. Environment and natural resources

The Group pursues the best practice between the
development and the environment, and takes into careful
consideration of all the aspects and activities within the
value chain to mitigate the impact on the environment. To
achieve the sustainable development of the environment,
the Group regularly provides environmental protection
information and practical advice related to environmentally
friendly living style to staff for circulation.
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B.

SOCIETY

Employment and labor practices

1.

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and most valuable
assets and core competitive advantages of the Group
who continuously provide the source of innovation for the
Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration and
welfare, and implements comprehensive performance
appraisal scheme to award and praise the staff with
excellent performance and assists them with their career
development and promotion within the Group by providing
appropriate trainings and opportunities. Meanwhile, in
order to create a favorable and fair working environment
for employees and protect their physical and psychological
health, the Group will give careful consideration to all the
valuable suggestions for improving the working efficiency
and harmonizing the working atmosphere proposed by
employees, thereby establishing a united, harmonious and
professional team for the Group.

The Group strictly complied with the regulations and
provisions of laws in the PRC and Hong Kong, formulated
and strictly implemented the relevant management system
and measures, and expressly specified the employment,
labor relations, treatment, promotion, benefits and
retirement of the staff to safeguard their interests.

The Group strictly complied with the PRC laws and
regulations and policies associated with social insurance,
and made full contributions to various social insurance and
housing provident fund for all the staff in a timely manner.

Health and safety

Employees are the most important wealth and resources of
the Group, therefore, the health and safety of employees
are always the top priority of the Company. The Company
is committed to protecting the employees with production
safety while endeavour to protect and care about their
healthy and to provide a safe, healthy and protected
workplace.

The Group established a comprehensive management
system in occupational health and safety, strictly complied
with the regulations of occupational health and safety
in mainland China and Hong Kong, and laid a solid
foundation for safe operation. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group did not experience any significant safety
accident during the operation.
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Development and training

The Group adopts the principle of unified management
and stratified training for the education and training of
its staff. Upon joining the Company, new employees
must participate in pre-service training focusing on the
Company’s corporate culture, corporate policies and
goals, production safety, necessary skills, etc. A series
of tailor-made training courses are provided to senior
management and middle management on anti-corruption
practices for leaders as well as trainings for middle and
senior management of listed companies. The Company
will evaluate the training effects subsequently, so as to
enhance the pertinence and effectiveness of training,
which will further enhance the technical skills and
professional quality of the Company’s employees of each
level achieving satisfactory results.

Labour standards

There is a clear requirement on the age of applicants in the
recruitment management system of the Group. The Group
will review and check the identification information of
applicants during the recruitment process and absolutely
no child labor will be employed. Applicants should provide
documents of educational background and working
experience for our verification when they report to work.
Any suspected applicants providing false documents of
educational background and working experience will not
be employed. The Group strives to create a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment for the employees,
and provide labor protection, reasonable remuneration
and various benefits to the employees. The Group enters
into an employment contract with each of the employees
in accordance with relevant regulations in the PRC and in
Hong Kong, and forbids any kind of forced labor.

Operational practices

5

Supply chain management

Supply chain management is always one of the key links
in the Company’s quality control system. The Company
focuses on the risk management of product quality and
keeps a close eye on signals of quality and safety crisis
of its medicines. Attaching great importance to product
compliance, the Company organizes self-inspections and
rectifications in a timely manner to ensure product quality.
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To ensure the quality of the purchased raw materials,
auxiliary ingredients and packaging materials, the
Company has established a supplier management
system in strict compliance with the Law of the PRC
on the Administration of Pharmaceuticals, GMP, and
other relevant laws and regulations. A standardised
management system is implemented on the procurement
of materials under a comparatively well-established
management system.

The Company also carries out long-term quality monitoring
and regular reviews on all suppliers. In case of a significant
change in supplier qualification or serious quality issue
occurs, the Company may suspend the delivery of the
supplier in question immediately to ensure the quality of
the medicine of the Company.

Product responsibility

The Company is committed to ensuring product safety.
Especially, as most of our products are pharmaceuticals,
product quality and safety are undoubtedly the top priority
of the Company.

The Company always sticks to strict product quality
control throughout the production process. The
Company’s quality control is executed primarily in
accordance with relevant requirements of GMP quality
management system.

The Company has formulated a complete set of quality
inspection management standards covering traditional
Chinese medical materials, auxiliary ingredients, packaging
materials, semi-finished and finished products, and sets
out requirements on various test objects, test methods
and test contents. During the year, the Company had no
products recall due to quality.

Meanwhile, the Company carried out advertisement
promotion in accordance with the law, further safeguarded
the rights and interests of consumers, ensured the legal
compliance of the Company’s advertisement promotion
and stringently prohibited any acts that would cause
damage to the image of the Company and the brand, such
as illegal advertisements.
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Anti-corruption
All of the Group’s operations are in compliance with local
and national legislation on standards of conduct, such as
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and relevant legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in
mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to
code of business ethics and forbids any corruption bribe
behavior as stipulated in the employment contracts.
In case of any conflict of interest, it must be reported
to the Group’s management immediately. Employees,
who engage in business operations and represent the
Company’s professional image, are strictly prohibited to
use business opportunities or power for personal interest
or benefit.

Community

8.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to become a positive momentum
in the communities in which it operates and maintains
close communications and interactions with the
communities in order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a beautiful and
peaceful community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
it can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage the staff to
volunteer their time and skills to benefit local communities.
It provides the employees with the opportunities to explore
more issues of the society and environment and reinforce
the Group’s corporate values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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" REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

HRZERIERIR(FEB)ESEHERBIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 47
to 124, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

MRZESIERIR(FE)EEMSEHMBIRAE

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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MRZELIERIR(FEB)ESESHERBIIRAE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Refer to Note 3 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and
Note 24 (trade receivables and contract assets) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures. As at 31 December
2018, gross trade receivables and contract assets of the Group
amounted to RMB354 million, which accounted for approximately
23% of the Group’s total assets. The allowance for expected credit
losses of trade receivables and contract assets amounted to RMB59
million, all of which was attributable to customers located in China.

Management judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets and adequacy
of allowance made using the expected credit losses (“ECL”) model
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. These judgement includes
estimating and evaluating expected future receipts from customers
based on historical experience, ageing analysis, subsequent
settlement status, past collection history, current economic
conditions and forward looking information.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and
the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and contract assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets included:

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by the management, including its procedures
on periodic review on aged receivables and assessment on
recoverability of these receivables;

= Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment of trade
receivables;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the current financial year;

= Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices;
and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances.
Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the
year end for those unprovided aged receivables beyond the
credit period as at year end, we obtained the management’s
assessment on the recoverability of these debts and
corroborated explanations with historical settlement pattern and
underlying correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we are satisifed that the estimation and
judgement made by the management in respect of the collectability of
receivables were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yu Kwong Man.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Kwong Man

Director
Practising Certificate number P04645

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEBmRkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—F—)\F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue WA 4 647,672 645,303
Cost of sales SHES AR (115,554) (114,250)
Gross profit E7 532,118 531,053
Other income HAaU A 6 51,576 24,008
Other gains Hopth Uy 7 7 6,612 -
Distribution and selling costs DIHRIBER (375,480) (3835,128)
Administrative expenses TR (28,450) (47,165)
Profit from operations Pl vl 186,376 172,768
Finance costs B & AR AN 8 (53) -
Profit before income tax B BT 1554 BT 08 7 9 186,323 172,768
Income tax expense FrSBisz i 10(a) (25,107) (28,366)
Profit for the year N g A 161,216 144,402
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 mEU s _ -
Total comprehensive income for the year 7% E2HE A5 161,216 144,402
Profit attributable to: LA EEAR&F
Owners of the Company ViNINETE ZE PN 161,216 144,402
Total comprehensive income BT EGZ2EKE
attributable to: M
Owners of the Company VIN/NGTEZ 2= DN 161,216 144,402
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERARES) 11 28.78 25.77

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&Mf < fitsE B AR A M SRR BLE 2 —2D °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

= A
meEEEER
As at 31 December 2018
R-ZE-NF+ZH=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZTR)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —FE—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥F T ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 16 11,745 11,440
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENKEE 17 156,591 166,133
Prepaid land lease payments LS 18 15,068 15,520
Construction in progress TEIRE 19 67,588 44127
Intangible assets EWEE 21 - -
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBE E 31 944 316
251,936 2387 236
Current assets REEE
Inventories =zE 22 52,456 50,722
Trade receivables FEULE 5 AR 24(a) 249,326 244,855
Contract assets ABHEE 24(b) 45,309 -
Other receivables, deposits HmEWsIE - 5Te &k
and prepayments TEf HIE 25 225,408 108,577
Loan receivables U E R 26 - 2,500
Prepaid land lease payments Faft i S 18 454 454
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTABGRK
profit or loss AR 23 571,612 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENTHEE - 483,000
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBSEMEY 27 158,340 110,428
1,302,905 1,000,536
Current liabilities mEBEE
Trade payables B E S ERR 28 31,705 35,201
Contract liabilities EHEE 14,779 =
Other payables, deposits received HEMmEMZIE - Bl
and accruals HEY4 08 4 280,446 111,697
Deferred income PEIE YA 30 589 1,789
Income tax payable ERATEH 20,645 27,380
Other tax payables H S T8 16,754 21,236
Loan from government authority BT Bl B R 29 1,240 1,333
Dividend payable FERTAR B 9,326 1,447
375,484 200,083
Net current assets hEEEZE 927,421 800,453
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABEE 1,179,357 1,037,989

48  Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

= A
meEEEER
As at 31 December 2018
R-ZE-NF+ZH=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ2T)
2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥ T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FknRBERE
Loan from government authority BT # R E R 29 1,110 1,637
Deferred income JRIEUT A 30 45,170 25,325
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEE S 31 52 -
46,332 26,962
Net assets EEEE 1,133,025 1,011,027
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS AR R#E AEL
OF THE COMPANY R
Share capital R 7R 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 1,077,000 955,002
Total equity FESMEEE 1,133,025 1,011,027

These consolidated financial statements were approved and #“EGEaWBREN_ZE-—NF=A-_TNLBEE

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019. EEgHEREERM -
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
[EI ji 5
Director Director
2 o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&Mf < fitsr B AR A M SRR BLE 2 —2D °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A il 3¢
mERRBHR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_F-N\FT_H=1+—HIFEF
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEZT)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
N RGBE ZERBEE REBERA @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥Tz AR%Tz AR%Txm
(Note 32)  (Note 33(b)(i)) (Note 33(b)(i))
(Hi#32)  (Wi#33m)) (33w
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB—tH—F—H7&H 56,025 51,098 33,242 726,260 866,625
Comprehensive income 2EKEH
Profit for the year KEREH - - - 144,402 144,402
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 EkE - - - - -
Total comprehensive income gl Gy - - - 144,402 144,402
Transactions with owners RE2RXS
Appropriation to statutory S ey

surplus reserve - - - = .

At 31 December 2017 RZB—t&+ZA=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 870,662 1,011,027
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—Bz&% 56,025 51,098 33,242 870,662 1,011,027
Comprehensive income ZHUNE

Profit for the year REZEF - - - 161,216 161,216
Other comprehensive income Hit2EhzE - - - - _
Total comprehensive income 2ANEEE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,031,878 1,172,243
Transactions with owners BREZR S

Dividends paid (Note 13) SRS (HE13) - - - (39,218) (39,218)
Appropriation to statutory BREECRAGHE

surplus reserve - - - - -

At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+-H 56,025 51,098 33,242 992,660 1,133,025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&Mf < fitsr B AR A M SRR BLE 2 —2D °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= L=
HERESRER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—F—)\F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
li0fza AR®TR AREFT
Cash from operating activities RETHEE2HS
Profit before income tax bR PSR A& A 186,323 172,768
Adjustments for: HEIER
Interest income FLEWA 6 (4,677) (2,746)
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BATER ABRE
through profit or loss BB E R 6 (16,994) -
Yield gains on available-for-sale financial A ENISEE
assets ] 5 U - (10,595)
(Reversal of)/loss allowance for trade W E 5 ERE
receivables (E%),/ %l 9 (6,232) 24,698
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving FRE QAT BB
inventories 9 1,093 179
Interest expenses FELH 8 53 =
Reversal of loss allowance for M E TR B 2 5
loan receivables 6 (7,500) (2,500)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TR LA 8 5 g 452 454
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRENE 9 19,339 20,874
Impairment of intangible assets B AERERE 160 -
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BATEABRN
through profit or loss DB EER T 7 (6,612) =
Reversal of impairment on other receivables HoAh JE ISR IR R (B 48 (1,509) -
Government subsidies B B 8E 6 (4,676) (4,950)
Recognition of deferred income FERIETE A 6 (1,789) (1,949)
Operating cash flows before working HELSE PR L
capital changes Rene 157,431 196,273
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,827) (24,846)
Decrease in trade receivables W E Z R0 1,761 150
Increase in contract assets BHEELEM (45,309) -
Increase in other receivables, deposits HipEWEmE  fTe Kk
and prepayments TR RIS (115,322) (15,572)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables R ESRF AL ), /18 (3,496) 3,503
Increase in other payables, deposits received and ~ EfhfERZIE - 2] &
accruals RIERT B R M 168,749 6,284
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEM 14,779 -
(Decrease)/increase in other tax payables HiEAFACHD), /B0 (4,482) 2,383
Cash generated from operations REXBEE 2R ® 171,284 168,175

EMEEEREACEEROHERAT
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= o~ —1
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—F—)\F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2018 2017
—E- )\ﬂi —= _‘tg
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
li0fza ARBTR AERETF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELECRERE
Cash generated from operations g **%a‘a% E7BRE 171,284 168,175
Income tax paid EREHR (32,418) (21,668)
Interest paid BRAFE 8 (53) -
Net cash generated from operating activities  REEBHEL2HRLEE 138,813 146,507
Cash flows from investing activities REEBELECHERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETRAENEE 16 (305) (696)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BENREE 17 (9,797) (11,012)
Purchase of construction in progress BEERIRE 19 (23,461) (24,179)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEGT ABRZH
through profit or loss A E 28 (967,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BERMHEENTEEE - (960,000)
Purchase of intangible assets E%Ei,iﬁ%ﬁffc (160) -
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets EREA A ABRR
at fair value through profit or loss BB EMSE 23 885,000 -
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale RSN EE
financial assets } - 780,540
Decrease in loan receivables [EREFOR D 10,000 5,000
Interest received 2 A S 6 4,677 2,746
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BATER A EwE
through profit or loss B 5B E B R e 6 16,994 -
Yield gains on available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ i & K81 75 & 22 [0 8B 2 - 10,555
Net cash used in investing activities REERFAZRSFE (84,052) (196,946)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBEL2RERE
Proceeds from government subsidies R T fR BL P B TR 25,110 6,150
Repayment of loan from government authority BEBTREE D (620) -
Dividend paid ERRE (31,339) (21)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from MEEK(FH) EE2
financing activities BeFE (6,849) 6,129
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRASEEMEM (RD)
cash equivalents ek 47,912 (44,310)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHBE&RBEEEY 110,428 154,738
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRALRBAEEEY 158,340 110,428
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRBREEENER I
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances BHE RBITER 158,340 110,428

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24
May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products
in the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

()

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (collectively referred to as
the “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
from 1 January 2018. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRS applied by the Group is set out as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and the related
amendments

HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

Except as described below, the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior periods and/
or on the disclosures set out in the notes to consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments and the related consequential

amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new

requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of

financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit

losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general hedge

accounting.

()

(a)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets

The unlisted financial instruments with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$483,000,000 were
reclassified from AFS financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
This is because even though the Group’s business
model is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, the cash flows of these
investments do not meet the HKFRS 9 criteria as
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

There was no material impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the
application of HKFRS 9.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables. Except for those which had been
determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, the
remaining balances are grouped based on past due
analysis. The Group has therefore estimated the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables on the
same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other
financial assets at amortised cost, including
receivables, cash and bank balances, are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

(c) Financial liabilities
There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities previously carried at amortised
costs remained to be measured at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ from 1 January 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Group
adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption (if any) will be recognised in retained earnings
as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has
transformed, being when the customer has inspected
and accepted the products. The Group does not expect
to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. Sales are
made with a credit term of 180 days to its customers in
Mainland China, which is consistent with market practice.
As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money as there is
no significant financing component. There is no material
impact for adopting the HKFRS 15 on revenue recognition.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has also voluntarily changed the presentation of
the following amounts in the consolidated balance sheet to
reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(“HKFRS 15”) (continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to

contracts with customers (continued)

° Contract assets in relation to control of the products
has transformed that is not yet unconditional were
previously included in trade receivables, and are now
separately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

° Contract liabilities in relation to deposits from
customers were previously included in accruals and
other payables, and are now separately disclosed in
the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassification and
the adjustments arising from the adoption of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but
are recognised in the opening of the consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 2(0).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39

at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

2. EXSHEHEBEGER)

(c) BFfBEERBREZZE(H)

TRFBREE B EHRELERFEO
FREB BT EREITEARTE
HEEBEBNMBEERMEAE
AR H A T8 B 201841 F1H H X
FER B BN SERETE -

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9

and HKAS 18 and HKFRS 15
carrying carrying

amounts at amounts at

31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
R20175124318 14201851 A18
REFEEER REENKERE
$393 EHIE%H
BHNEEE BHAE BHMEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R

Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEHF ABRZHBEE

profit and loss 483,000 (488,000) =
Avallable-for-sale financial assets MEHENSBEE - 483,000 483,000
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFNERNYBEE

profit or loss
Trade recelvables B Z8R50 244,855 (45,981) 198,874
Contract assets RNEE - 45,981 45,981
Current liabilities RBaE
Other payable, deposits received and HiERE  EMGIe RIESER

accruals 105,413 (7,760) 97,653
Contract liabilities BHEE - 7,760 7,760
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation

(e)

of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs
above will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Consolidation (continued)

(iii)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.

Impairment testing of the investment in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.

EASBERBE(E)
(e) #ZR&E(#)
(i) HEMBAE

(iv)

HARE T BHAZGIE - &
RZBR 2 TAREERIZE
RAREZHIEERZRAFES
A MEmEZHANE
PR o BLEIR ARSI EHE

BAR - ABARRIHEE
REERNE - AFEED

JARRMEME  UESN - SRR E A
EHKRAARREZERBAR
ZEMEREENZEECE
BEHEAREESAGBZ AN
AR o ERIBERIRE LA R
2 E R E AR 2 S EEH
&0 Am N EE

B BBRE
EARRZEERABERA R
B A BRI E IR A AN ER
ETIER - B LR 2 ¥Em
ARAIZEW R B Z BB A
B o

BRENHE AR ZMEHAR
B it SR E WA 2 BB R T P
BRARERREHEANZEZE
Wes BERREREEN B
MBRRBBERERAZE
EFE(BERE)NMEAMH
BRAZEEEMEL



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on the disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment property carried at cost

The Group transfers a property from property, plant and
equipment to investment property when there is a change
of use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for its own use in the ordinary
course of business.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(i) Prepaid land lease payments
Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(k) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

() Intangible assets
(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

(n)

(0)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair

value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

()

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other losses in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3(b) for further details.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
If a loan or held-to maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(i)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
(a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in consolidated profit or loss is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(q) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(r)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BMB”), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(o) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with the
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The employees in Mainland China participate in
the defined contribution retirement plans managed
by the local government authorities whereby they
are required to contribute to the schemes at fixed
rates of the employees’ salary costs. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment (see note 2(0)(d) for
a description of impairment policy). If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHTHXRBME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Related parties (x) BEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — B AR R BB RAE - i
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that (@ ZIBUTATHEERH
person’s family and that person: & :
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () 22 S L R fI AN SR E
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEEEATE =X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) ABAEEXAREER
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; AMEZEEEKE :
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) ZABFEATRENELS :
conditions applies:
()  the entity and the Group are members of the i) ZEBRBEAEEEBR-—
same group (which means that each parent, SEMKE(AISEAR
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the al - M A F] K R & B
others); BA R E AR
(iy  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —EAEBAZ—EH8HN
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a BAATHA SR (R
member of a group of which the other entity is BRE—SEHNKE
a member); ERARIREEMRE M
ZBE-—ERBRILEEN
KE)
(iiy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEEYRR—
party; ARG SR
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) *1I,\‘§“7%%_Ef§“§i%
and the other entity is an associate of the third MeEErtERS —EEB
party; RE=ZLEBNBER
al
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) EZE‘Q‘EEE$E Elpeat
the benefit of employees of either the Group or REBEBEBABHNEED
an entity related to the Group; E%Zﬂéﬁ&%ﬁ%
‘raAETEl
(vi) the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZZEiﬁff*()jBﬁﬁ§%ﬂJﬂﬁj\
person identified in (a); and TRl Sk RIS
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viy R@)FTHANEEESE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BAREMNATLT  HE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a ER(HERBHNELA)
parent of the entity). BREBEABMKER
==
Close members of the family of a person are those family HZ ATRERZEINRENXES = E
members who may be expected to influence, or be MM EERE R HEITR S - i‘ﬁﬁﬁ—f
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity. EERERATHZZATEEN
KEKE °
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for goods supplied or service performed, stated
net of rebates and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of returns on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the customers
is recognized at the point that the control of the inventory
have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon
the acceptance of the products by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contractual liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

()

(aa)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i)  Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(i)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(l). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of the management’s assumptions
and estimates.

(b) Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
management judgement as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-lookinginformation that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each reporting period, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 38.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

(d)

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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HEMKM EBREZEELIFR
B & B T DA S SOORL ©

Fri&®t
ARBEABATEZAER - NE
JE P15 Wi Bt B R (E h B X HIER -
ARARBREZREEERKRIAZ
R REE - ARANERIARH
REZEECRER EZERESD
HIRBIMNEHR IR ZTBA - % F
FEZERRBRBERENTLE 2
SRIF FHEZERSTEELE
EZHBAZ A RRERSHRE
EREE-

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
—T— \FFf

83



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

84

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other
sales related taxes.

WA
AEBEZEIBEXBRRERDHEPERE
BER - WAEHEERRWERE IO
BEBREE  #THl - BMEBLEMEE
HEH AN S -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Sales of Chinese medicines and Rk K B8 BEEE R G
pharmaceutical products 647,672 645,303
SEGMENT INFORMATION oEER
Segment information o ERE B

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM?”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical
products in the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis
thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMWA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥T AREBTIT
Recovery of bad debts previously 1 5] 2 i S 2 BR
written off - 16
Bank interest income RITH EWA 4,677 2,356
Government subsidies (Note) ESEEENC ) 4,676 4,950
Recognition of deferred income TR IR A 30 1,789 1,949
Interest income on loan receivables  FEUE ZUF B UL A - 390
Yield gains on financial assets at fair & A F{EF A BRI
value through profit or loss & EE Bl e 16,994 =
Yield gains on available-for-sale Al i & M B 75 & E B =R
financial assets e - 10,555
Reversal of provision for impairment & U B 25 8 1 48 2] %
of loan receivables 26 7,500 2,500
Reversal of loss allowance of FEUS B 5 BR SRR (B
trade receivables B 7,742 -
Compensation received B EUA 4,426 -
Penalty income SN 1,639 421
Others HAh 2,133 871
51,576 24,008
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group received Hiet . REBE-_T—N\ER_ZT—t&F+-_A=+—

subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology

HILFE - ARBESH BRI W HAT
MMED EEALEENERREMERE

development of the Group. H—BHEES o
7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hit=
2018 2017
—E-NF —F—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BAFERT ABER
through profit or loss B T5E ER S 6,612 =
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEKAK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Interest expenses on a loan from BUSH#EER 2 F S
government authority = {33! (53) -

EMEEEREACEEROHERAT

—T— \FFf
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRETERAIER
2018 2017
—E-NF —FT—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR®T R AREFIT
Profit before income tax for the year is INE JE R FT 1S5 A A
arrived at after charging:— EMRTEIEIE : —
Cost of inventories sold (excluding BEHEFEXRA(CTE
additional provision for, and write off of T35 18 N34S R 8
obsolete and slow-moving inventories) BRE N HMEE) 105,675 105,023
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving BEEN R ERE
inventories 22 1,093 179
(Reversal of)/loss allowance for W E SRR R
trade receivables and contract assets BHEEZRE
B, Bl 24 (6,232) 24,698
Auditor’s remuneration:— ZEETNE © —
Provision for the year FNEE 308 277
Impairment of intangible assets BEERME
(included in cost of sales) (FIASHERA) 21 160 =
Research and development cost i EE AR 334 1,477
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEA L M T & 5
payments (included in cost of sales) (B A SEERKAS) 18 452 454
Depreciation of property, plant M - BE&E&E
and equipment e 17 19,339 20,874
Employee benefits expenses and human BTEAEBRKEAN
resources cost (excluding directors’ and BREAN(TEIEE
supervisors’ remuneration): EREEME)
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 18,649 16,941
Sales Commission *BERE 102,369 135,789
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHE IR 2,381 2,033
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

Income tax represents:

10. FAfEHiX i

FiSB e
2018 2017
—®-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARETT

PRC corporate income tax AR ZEATIS
— Current year —RNEE 23,876 29,601
— Underprovision/(Overprovision) —BAFEREBEIR
in prior years (FREEREE) 1,807 (673)
Deferred taxation (Note 31) IRERIA (HTa231) (576) (562)
25,107 28,366

The PRC corporate income tax is provided according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which
became effective from 1 January 2008. In accordance with
the new tax law, an unified enterprise income tax rate of
25% is applied to both domestic-invested enterprises and
foreign- invested enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (& #k
BRI EFiTEE). The Company is entitled to a reduced
PRC corporate Income tax rate of 15% for another three
consecutive years commenced since year 2018.

PECEMFRIRETEARE
RIER R -

RZFZLF=A+E  2EHA
AREBHETECEMFTLE - A
—ETNFE-H-HBEN - RIE
MR TBERERINEDELS
—HR25% BB EMSH o

AARRZZE—HEFNAT+LEE
EMERBRMERS BRI
flrd3 | e RRARN -F—/\Fie5t
BE=FAEBARTRECEMEH
KE15%HANTIA

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

. FRB B i ()

(b) BIEXHESHBINRBARE

accounting profit at applicable tax rate: HERWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before income tax bR P15 25 A& £ 186,323 172,768
National tax calculated at PRC BB EMSHE15%

enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZZE—LtF :15%)

(2017: 15%) STEABIT 27,948 25,915
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARGBANTE B E (4,172) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A 1% 5 7 #Y Fid 75 52 2 101 3,686
(Overprovision)/Underprovision BEFE(BEREE)

in prior years BIETE 1,807 (673)
Deferred tax on temporary differences B FEH =% 2

in prior year BRI (577) (562)
Income tax expense Frisfis & 25,107 28,366
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 is based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Group for the year of RMB161,216,000 (2017:
RMB144,402,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the
year (2017: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 includes a profit of RMB162,198,000 (2017:
RMB144,365,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 33).

DIVIDENDS

The Company declared and paid a special dividend of RMB7
cents per share on 22 April 2018.

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BREF
HE_T-N\F+_A=+—HBLFE "
BREARFTIBEFAREB RS AR
1% A AR #161,216,000 (= F —+
F: AR¥A144,402,0007T) R ERNE &
17 I& 15 560,250,000 f& ( — & — + 4
560,250,0000% )5+ & -

HREEZE T N\FER_ZFT—+tF+_A4
=+ —HEFEVEBEESI AR K
W25 G ERF -

RRRER ABMEET

HE—Z—-N\F+-_A=+—RHILEE
A RAREA AREEFHSEEFIAR
162,198,000 (ZE —+F : ARK
144,365,0007T) * %@ M E R AR A Z 8
TEmF PRI (M13E33) o

RE
ARRER=ZE—N\FRA-+-AEK
REHRIREEBRARETS -

AR TEHFRNEBEE T —/\F
ToA=T—REFEZEFRERE (=
T—+F &)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Special dividends HERIR B 39,218 -

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the

14. EERSRITHRAEME

(@ E=#M<
FR - BIBEGEM MR REB(A
ARG (F622F ) 383K k(A A
(BEESFZER)HRG)E28 2

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of REMBRBENZESMENT -
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2018 —E-N\E
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2018 Total
fees  EHd - 28 bonus contributions Z—B-N\f
EEHe  REMFE MERL  BARSHX BHe
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
(Note (i)
(Hizt())
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ 3R3h(E/E) - 290 912 - 1,202
Zhang Xiao Guang R - 225 248 20 493
Zhao Bao Gang FH 2 [l - 179 89 47 315
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 44 20 124
Zhang Yi (appointed on REB(ZB-N\E
8 June 2018) NANREZE) - 66 174 8 248
Xu Xiang Fu (appointed on ~ REIK(ZZE—\F
8 June 2018) NANREZE) - 65 89 8 162
Independent Non-Executive BV IH7TEE -
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin (appointedon ~ SERA(ZE—\&F
8 June 2018) NANBEZR) - 30 10 - 40
Gao Yong Cai SRS - - 10 - 10
Tian Jie SRl - 28 10 - 38
Qiu Fang Ping (resigned on B F(=F—N\F
24 April 2018) MA=+mA
) - - - - -
- 943 1,586 103 2,632
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Bt < () BBt hENEE e HER

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having

determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESE (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EE=M<E(E)
2017 —E—+1fF
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension

Directors’ benefits  Discretionary fund 2017 Total

fees e ER bonus  contrbutions < —F—+%F

e  REMAR WERL  BARSHR Be

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETL

(Note (i)
(Hizt())
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ 3R3A(E/E) - 307 199 - 506
Zhang Xiao Guang REEE - 233 132 18 383
Zhao Bao Gang fesh=l] - 182 44 42 268
Wu Guo Wen REX = 60 217 18 295
Independent Non-Executive BV IHTEE -
Directors:
Gao Yong Cai SKA - - - - -
Tian Jie iR = = - - -
Qiu Fang Ping il ped - - - = =
- 782 592 78 1,452
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration BifsE ¢ () WISt mTMES efER
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having 2. YhBEEeAEAEERK
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, ek (@A KRIRAE B
individual performance and comparable market statistics. TTIRBIEELET o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESE (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (b) SRITHAEME
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the REFERARASESZMN2Me
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent KR 1,000,000 L(REBE=Z
to RMB881,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 —NF+ZA=FT—HILFERE
and RMB833,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017) RARYS81,000c KRB E-Z
are as follows: —tF+-A=+—HIFEHEE
MARMS33,0007T) « EFBEWT :
2018 —E-N\HF
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2018 Total
F23- - 4 bonus contributions —E-N\E
REMFIR MERA  EBAREER “ame

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETR AR®TR ARETR

(Note (i)
(Hizt())
Supervisors: VT
Qiao Xiao Chun (appointed on ~ BEH(ZT—/\&F
8 June 2018) NANBEZA) 40 40 8 88
Wang Ying Xu TEm 31 3 15 49
Yan Li Yu (appointed on BREE(ZZT—)\F
8 June 2018) NANBEZA) 18 30 8 56
Wu Wei Men (resigned on RER(ZE—N\F
24 April 2018) A=+ ERE) 26 81 5 112
Zhao Gang (resigned on Wl ZE—N\F
24 April 2018) MA =+ EBHE) 37 40 - 77
152 194 36 382
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Kzt - () RIBEARTEHNEE S HERE
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having U HEESL2EAREEK
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, AL - [AARIBE R A]E L
individual performance and comparable market statistics. THIEHIEEET
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESE (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued) (b) ERITHAEME (E)
2017 —E—+tHF

Salaries,
allowances
and other

benefits  Discretionary  Pension fund 2017 Total

TN I bonus contributons =~ —ZE—+%E

RE A% METEa  RASER ane

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARBTR

(Note (i)
(Kre0)
Supervisors: o
Wang Ying Xu TEm 31 - 13 44
Wu Wei Men SRR 67 20 18 100
Zhao Gang i 113 44 7 164
211 64 &) 308
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Btat (i) BMEEAHFMES @HER
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having O UTHEEEL2EAREEK
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, BEE  AARRRAIALE
individual performance and comparable market statistics. IS EET o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEME(E)

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
four Directors (2017: four Directors) whose remuneration
were set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining one (2017: one) highest paid, non-director
employee whose remuneration was below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB881,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 and RMB833,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017) are as follows:

(c)

TEBRSEFMAL
FARGERaTWALERENRE
BE(ZT—+F:OEEF)  HMW
SHBR EX@BHE - B
AEEER—ERaTHIEESE
B(ZZ—+tF: —R)Z2FHER
1,000,000 B L (B ZE=F — \F
+Z A=+ BALEEEHSENRAR
#881,000 TR E-_T—+&F+=
A=+ —BLEFEHSERARYE
833,0007T) « HEFMFELT

2018 2017
—-\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits Z 4 - 284 & H A FIZE 27 226
Pension scheme contributions ERE TR 20 18
291 244

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB881,000 (2017: equivalent to
RMB833,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

15.

16.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain-
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The
local government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligation payable to retired employees.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB2,520,000
(2017: RMB2,142,000). The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
the Scheme.

15.

R KAEFIET &

EHE TR KT &
REBETEAASSHRA LR - AEE2
S8 Py R B 7 AR T BT G B AR A R R A
FORMREAGEI ([t 81)) - Bt - A%
BAZAEREEMMABEIEN —EaD
Loz at IR o 5 BRI B S R AR
REEMZEERSIERETAR

REBEE=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—HLILF
B AEERZARNERARERNGTEERE
AR¥2,520,000ic(ZF—+4F : ARK
2,142,0007T) o A5 [0 % E th A5 B a% AT
SIMEREBRBRSREE ©

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. TREBEMNEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRBEMEERTRE :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Ginseng, at cost A2 BAE 11,745 11,440
Vineyard, at cost BE 0 BRAE - =
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKEA 11,745 11,440

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
—T— \FFf
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. FTEBEYEE (&)

Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: T BEYEERTDESE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Ginseng AS
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZERHEEAE 11,440 10,844
Additions during the year FRRE 305 596
Carrying amount at 31 December R+--—A=+—HBZEAE 11,745 11,440
Vineyard 75
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAE - =
Written off b - _
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEHEE - -
11,745 11,440
The carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued A2 REEHREEEIZIEERAEE - %
at their original costs. These assets are in their early stage of SEERNSHENEFYE B &EERR
cultivation and preparation and active market prices are not B - B EFRAEVRKANEREEZER
available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that the ZERERBBRZ AFEREE °

original costs would approximate their fair values at this stage of
their development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAEBZT)
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Transportation equipment
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  {FE  £E Total
BF RBERKSR BaRk e Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETE ARETT AREKTT AR®TR
Cost: YA
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t%F—H—H 151,061 97,830 6,026 4,071 258,988
Transfer from construction  7E32 Ti2& A (#519)
in progress (Note 19) 793 2,374 — 156 3,323
Additions R 224 9,922 854 12 11,012
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 152,078 110,126 6,880 4,239 273,323
Additions R - 7,191 2,576 30 9,797
At 31 December 2018 R_F-N\F+-A=1+—H 152,078 117,317 9,456 4,269 283,120

Accumulated depreciation:  ZEHTE :

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tF—Hf—A 33,433 47,998 2,934 1,951 86,316
Charge for the year (Note 9) £ R $4(f:29) 4,672 14,926 732 544 20,874
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F+=-A=1—H 38,105 62,924 3,666 2,495 107,190
Charge for the year (Note 9) E R 85 (ff319) 4,462 13,689 808 380 19,339
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 42,567 76,613 4,474 2,875 126,529
Carrying amount: REE :

At 31 December 2018 R=E—N\E+=A=+—AH 109,511 40,704 4,982 1,394 156,591
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=1—H 113,973 47,202 3,214 1,744 166,133
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. LS

RMB’000
ARETIT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—+F—H—H"
and 31 December 2018 —E—tF+-A=+—HkFK
—E-NF+ZH=+—8H 19,785
Accumulated amortisation: RETHEESH
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 3,357
Charge for the year (Note 9) FAZHE(MEEI) 454
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 3,811
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRNZHE(HEE9) 452
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=ZH=+—H 4,263
Carrying amount: AREE -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FT+ZHA=+—H 15,5622
At 31 December 2017 RZZT—tF+=A=+—H 15,974
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—HEAEE 15,522 15,974
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEE D (454) (454)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEABIERDEE 2D 15,068 15,520

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the PRC. LA _E AR BR A 3 55 AR S AL R AR ] o

The Group recognised the amount as the carrying amount of AEECERZEBAEBAEECERA
the relevant assets and will transfer this to profit or loss over the B THERLwHAEZAIAFHRNERE
useful lives of the land leases. b E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHEZT)
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. EETRE
2018 2017
—®-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000

20.

ARWTF T ARETT

At 1 January w—A—H 44,127 23,271
Additions R 23,461 24,179
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB « E LG
(Note 17) (Hia£17) - (3,323
Written off b= — .
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 67,588 44127
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. ABARINKEE
The Company
RAFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARETT

Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE - BKAE 5,000 5,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT &8~ B 5 6,032 4,018
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERB B A R IE (5,000) (5,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 were as

follows:

Country of incorporation

. RBBLRANRE (&)

RZZE-—NF+-A=+—H WERA

BT

Percentage of

and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
AR AL R EERSE
RENERRK ZRERGW
AR BB EEBERM Bokk TEFEK
EMEMTERENKEERAE HE - BREEAA 100% EEEH
PRC, limited liability company Dormant
EMEREREDRRERAF FE - BREEAA] 100% B3 K o0 sHIRGE
Em
PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and
distribution of
health products
EMRERMBXEREEAF e BREEAA] 100% MK FRER
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business
EMEREFMEREEGRAF e BREEAA] 100% MK FRER
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business
EMEREGEYRIEERAF e BREEAA] 100% MK FRER
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries classified as current
assets/(liabilities) respectively in the Company’s balance sheet
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BLEE

Purchased
know-how and
prescription

B A H 15 &
&y
RMB’000
AREET T
Cost: AR :

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 67,975
Additions N -
Disposal = =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+—_A=1+—H 67,975
Additions 3 160
Disposal HE -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\FE+=ZH=1T—8H 68,135

Accumulated amortisation and ZrBERRERE

impairment loss:

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—HA—H 67,975
Amortisation charge B -
Write back on disposal 5 B 48 =
Impairment NEREED _
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+_HA=+—H 67,975
Amortisation charge #H -
Write back on disposal 6 Bl # -
Impairment (Note 9) AR (HTaF9) 160
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\FE+A=+—8H 68,135

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2018

ARTEE
R_ZF—N\F+=-A=1+—8H

At 31 December 2017

R_ZB—t+F+_H=+—H

EMEEEREACEEROHERAT

T N\FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 21. EREE (&)
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through BABRMRES HEBLE=F6EMH
research and development cooperation with independent third % BEEUARESEBA ©
parties and were all acquired in cash.
During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of FAN - ESRBEZZEERREEZLE
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future Pt T AR 225 2 BRTEE - &
economic benefits generated from these assets. Impairment FEERABEEEARE160,000T( ==
loss of RMB160,000 was recognised for the current year (2017: —tF |
Nil).
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
Raw materials R 18,607 20,163
Work in progress TR 29,462 21,981
Finished goods RUBK A 6,805 9,903
54,874 52,047
Less: Provision for obsolete and W BEERS T ERE
slow-moving inventories (2,418) (1,325)
52,456 50,722

During the year ended 31 December 2018, provision
on obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounted to
RMB1,093,000 was made (2017: RMB179,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories were written off (2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories which the provision were already made
in prior years, were written off (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

23.

24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. &4

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FiE ABHG I EE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Current assets mENE E
Unlisted financial instruments LT TA 571,612 -
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or BEATFEFAEBENVBEEATEEAR
loss are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy (note 37(f)). FEBATE=ER(HFI7H)
TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 24. ERESRARENEE
ASSETS .
(a) Trade receivables (a) EWEZEREX
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January 31 December
—E-N\F —E-NF —T—+F
12A31H 181H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T R ARBT T
(restated)
KE
(Note 2(c))
(BfEE2(c))
Trade receivables TEIE ZEER 269,712 222,772 310,641
Less: Loss allowance R E R (20,386) (23,898) (65,786)
Trade receivables — net TEWWE ZEER— 558 249,326 198,874 244,855

()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit
period of 180 days to its trade customers.

(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance of trade
receivables, is as follows:

i) AEEERRALKTESIEFRT
#H180H 2 &8 -

iy WBEZZAHLIKERKRES
BRFURERE  BRE SRR

R BRER D ATLAOT :
2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARBETT

Current BNEA 59,921 43,467
31-90 days 31-90H 66,108 52,688
91-180 days 91-180H 71,102 42,892
More than 180 days HiB180H 52,195 105,963

249,326 244,855
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT
ASSETS (continued)

(@ T
(i)

Trade receivables(continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9,which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, these receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the aging from billing. See Note 37(a) for further
information about expected credit loss provision.
Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated
income statement within “administrative expenses”.
See note 2(n) for information about how impairment
losses are calculated.

24. BRESBRARENEE (&)

(a)

FEWE SR (E)

(iii) ZXEIFE%%%W%W%EE‘J
FOREI ML AT IR TE
HEEEBE EapESE
Y 5K I8 5T 1R 2 B 18 B S 48
- RETERBEEFE - Z
ZRINFIERE L REERR
HENRSERERETHEHSG - B
BIEHEEEERENE—D
é{ﬂ RHIEES7 (@) o BIEEE

REWER [TTHAX INTE
*71 c BEBEBEINFE 2
é“ﬂ - BHEE2(MN)

The movements in the loss allowance during the year FAREREOZBMT
are as follows:
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January 31 December
—E-N\F —E-NF —T—+F
12A31H 1A1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥T T ARBT T
(restated)
&E5
Opening balance FANEERR 23,898 14,926 41,088
(Reversal)/Addition OB /1 N E (3,512) 8,972 24,698
Closing balance F R 20,386 23,898 65,786
Loss allowance had been made for the estimated XERBIIREEEY 2 hEt
irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of goods. TR El & %EEE - EEE 2
The loss allowance was determined by the directors EIRER R KR E ERERE
with reference to past default experience. £%8 o
(iv) The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade vy Z==RA- Fﬂﬁlm%ﬁﬁ R AR
receivables approximates their fair value. ﬁ{ﬁéﬁi,ﬁ\ NEERE
(b) Contract assets (b) EBHREE
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January 31 December
—E-N\F —E-N\F —ET—tF
12HA31H 1A1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'OO_()
AR®T AR®T ARBT T
(restated)
KE
(Note 2(c))
(HtEE2(c))
Contract assets EHEE 84,477 87,869 =
Less: Loss allowance B ORE RS (39,168) (41,888) -
Contract assets — net BHREE—FHE 45,309 45,981 -
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HfttfEiFIE - sl RFENRE

PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Deposits and prepayments e RIBARIA 24,706 5,633
Advances to staff, net ME TER - S5 51,442 1,607
Other receivables, net H b GIE - FRE 9,008 6,807
Bills receivables et 140,252 94,530
225,408 108,577

During the year, no provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments was made (2017: Nil).

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain of the Group’s
advances to staff and other receivables were determined to
be impaired. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for
other receivables. The impaired receivables related to staff and
debtors that were in financial difficulties and the following loss

allowance has been made.

FA - WEHET S RIANFORE LR ER
B —T—tF: &) -

RZFB—-NEFRER=ZE—tFF+ZA=1+—
A A&EEREISNMETREREAM
BUHIEREECAERHE A5EERE
5 B 76 R 2 R SOk T B MY 1k 5 JR AT
REHEEESRE - S0 REMNERKIE
AEERTHRENES TMERABR
EEECRBAEEL A TEE -

Advanced to staff Other receivables
BEI#R H {th fE KT8
2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E T LF —B-NF —T LF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETT AR®BTRE ARETE

Gross amounts 55,347 5,512 10,558 9,866
Less: Loss allowance o BB (3,905) (3,905) (1,550) (3,059)
Net amounts 51,442 1,607 9,008 6,807

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.

HibEWRKIER - FTE RFANKE
(%)
REEL A A E EAERS -

The movement in the loss allowance of advances to staff and FAME TR K HMERFIERERE
other receivables during the year, is as follows: RN T :
2018 2017
—E-NF —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
At 1 January Rn—A—H 6,964 6,964
Reversal of provision BB R (1,509) -
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H 5,455 6,964
26. LOANS RECEIVABLES 26. EWER
2018 2017
—E-NF —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTIT
Loan receivables due within 1 year R—FREHZ EWRERK - 10,000
Less: loss allowance B ORE R - (7,500)
Loan receivables due within 1 year — net R—FRE|EZ EWE R —F5 - 2,500

(i) In 2017, a loan of RMB10,000,000 due from an
independent third party was unsecured and interest free.
The loan was fully repaid within 2018.

106 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

() ‘EZZ—tF EBRBIEF=FH
%%/\Eﬁ%mooooowm%?ﬁi%&%ﬁﬂ
Ek&E - ZEFREE=ZZ—N\FER
DMEJ&



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. EWERK(E)
(i) The movements in the specific loss allowance for loan i) FAREREREREDZ2FH N
receivables during the year are as follows: TS 5
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETTT
At 1 January w—A—H 7,500 10,000
Reversal (Note 6) 5 (fiat6) (7,500) (2,500)
Written off k] - _
At 31 December Rt+t=-—BA=+—H - 7,500
(i) The Directors consider the carrying amount of loan (i) BERA BURERZEEEEE
receivables approximates their fair value. NEERS -
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. RERBRESEEY

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of
these assets approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB158,340,000 (2017:
RMB110,428,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ReRBTERERAEERERE IR
B A=EAHAT 2 RHRITHER
EEZRA WFEEEZREEEEATE
HHE e

MN-ZE—NE+-_A=+—0 &X&H
NARBHEZRESRRBITEHREAR
¥ 158,340,000 (=T —tF : AR
110,428,0007T) - AR TEEER LA
HabEH - A - RIBPBEAREZIMNEE
BRTE FLEEERNEEERMEATE A%
s REREETINEEL 2 RITH
ARBHBBEMEE o

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. EREZERM

29.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

BT A E A B #6081 5 Rk E0 B
WA -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTIT

Current BIHA 4,390 7,654
31-90 days 31-90H 3,578 5,831
Over 90 days #B3E90H 23,737 21,716
31,705 35,201

The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90
to 180 days.

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of
trade payables approximates their fair value.

LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY

Loan was obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau for the
purpose of research and development activities of the Group.
The loan is unsecured and bear interest at one year term saving
interest rate promulgated by The People’s Bank of China plus
0.3% per annum. The loan is repayable by instalments until July
2022 as follows:

29.

AEEESERAZFHEEHRRORE
180H -

ENEZERTIZEEREERESR -
EERRENESERZEEERLAF
ERE -

B #EE

1R S B BB BRI AR E AR
R  ZEERABERR  EFEAR
RITEMH —FHARBENZMNOIERF
FIERGFE - ZZEFERTIAFAARZE
ZZF L ARIHEIERE :

2018 2017

—E-NF —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREBT T

Within one year —FRN 1,240 1,333
After one year but within two years R—FEEMFEAN 620 635
After two years but within five years RRFEEERFR 490 1,002
2,350 2,970
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. EZEW A
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 27,114 27,863
Arising from government grants PN SE ) 20,434 1,200
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) KB WIR% (A:E6) (1,789) (1,949)
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H 45,759 27,114
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HEAEE 45,759 27,114
Portion classified as current liabilities DERRBE EBH (589) (1,789)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities S &IERD A EZLH 45,170 25,826
During the year ended 2018, the Group received government AEER - N\FAESENEMER
grants of approximately RMB20,434,000 (2017: RMB1,200,000) TMEEEMBREE T AREENRE &R
from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan County BIREMER EEEE — PR 2 BITH
Finance Bureau in relation to support investments on plant and Bh#) A R#20,434,000C( =T — L4
equipment for further research and development of the Group's AR%1,200,0007T) °
intangible assets.
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31. EEFEB
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as RIEMEBHEERAGBZONAT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Deferred tax assets: BIERIARE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — KRR @1 218 A &Y E 2
after more than 12 months REFBEE (944) (316)
Deferred tax liabilities: REHIEBE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — SR BIE1 218 A U E 2
recovered after more than 12 months EERIBEE 52 -
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities, net RERIB(EE) AEFHE (892) (316)
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31. IEZEFFEH
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFTETAR B R BT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBTIT
As at 1 January n—A—8 (316) 246
Credited to profit or loss RiERmRER
(Note 10(a)) (H1a£10(a)) (576) (562)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H~ (892) (316)

The movements during the year in the deferred tax assets and FRBLEHARERREOEBHNT :

liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BELERESE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+ &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

At 1 January R—H—H - 246
Debited/(credited) to profit or loss RiEZRER

(Note 10(a)) (KtzE10(a) 52 (246)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 52 -
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31. EEEFSH(E)
Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETTT
At 1 January »—B—AR (316) -
Credited to profit or loss RiERRER
(Note 10(a)) (KfaE10(a) (628) (316)
As at 31 December W+=A=+—8H (944) (316)
The deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised at the balance NEEBRRZEEHE(EE) A&k
sheet date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated RE MR EE R 2 REFIE -

depreciation allowances.

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Number of Number of

shares Amount shares Amount
[ kx| RE i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T

Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each SR EE A ER¥0.107T

A AR 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775

H shares of RMBO0.10 each ERABARK0.10T
AIHR% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. XAFHNEERABREREEN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY )
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) AQAFTNEBEEERF/R
As at 31 December
RT=ZA=+-—
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
Notes RMB’OO_O RMB'OO_()
BisE ARETR ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREAR
Non-current assets FREBEE \
Bearer biological assets N BEMEE 11,745 11,440
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEREE 150,627 159,818
Investment properties KEEEE 2,854 2,854
Prepaid land lease payments fEft LA E 15,068 15,520
Construction in progress HET % } 67,588 44 127
Investment in subsidiaries Wﬁ% AIRIR & 20 5,000 5,000
Intangible assets FEE - -
Deferred tax assets L%RIE BE 944 316
253,826 239,075
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 50,474 50,292
Trade receivables U B SRR 249,326 244,855
Contract assets SNBE ‘ 45,309 -
Other receivables, deposits HAEWEE - 712
and prepayments RIBNEE 223,940 107,312
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Mt /B8 A ) 3R IE 20 6,032 4,018
Loan receivables EWE - 2,500
Prepaid land lease payments AN LA 452 454
Financial assets at fair value through BAEEABRA
profit or loss WIEEE 571,612 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A ER BB EE - 483,000
Cash and cash equivalents B LRBEESEEY 157,697 110,096
1,304,842 1,002,527
Current liabilities REa
Trade payables eS8 S ERR 31,481 35,000
Contract liabilities BHERE 14,779 =
Other payables, deposits received HipErz0E  BWGEI &
and accruals KIESTER 278,032 110,197
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHB B A Rl ZUE 20 5,000 5,000
Deferred income EERA 589 1,789
Income tax payable JERT TSN 20,645 27,380
Other tax payables Hth & (S IE 17,071 21,301
Loan from government authority HTHEER 1,240 1,333
Dividend payable FERTARE 9,326 1,447
378,163 203,447
Net current assets mBEEFE 926,679 799,080
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 1,180,505 1,038,156
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. AR RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) BE (&)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (@) AATMEEERER(E)
As at 31 December
Wt+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'OOQ
BiteE ARETR ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from government authority BITHEBER 1,110 1,637
Deferred income FEEUA 45,170 25,325
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 52 -
46,332 26,962
Net assets EEZE 1,134,173 1,011,193
EQUITY B
Share capital PR 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves i (b) 1,078,148 955,168
Total equity BEREE 1,134,173 1,011,193

These financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019.

ZEMBBRERR_ZE—NEF=AR
“tAREEESHERREEMm -

ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
[EIN s =i
Director Director
EF EF
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. AR RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 28 (&)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AATFBEHEH
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BR1RE EERGBRE RE & F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥Tr AR%Tx
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Hiati) (Hazii)
At 1 January 2017 M-+
—H—H 51,098 33,242 726,463 810,803
Profit for the year AREE R A - - 144,365 144,365
Appropriation to statutory B EEAE
surplus reserve RBEREE - - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F
+—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 870,828 955,168
Profit for the year NS 5 A = - 162,198 162,198
Dividends paid X ATRRE = - (39,218) (39,218)
Appropriation to statutory B ZEATE
surplus reserve BERE - - - -
At 31 December 2018  R=-ZT— \F
+=—HA=+—H 51,098 885242 993,808 1,078,148
()  Share premium iy mHEE

The Company’s share premium account represents AR 0w B A B R TR

the premium arising from shares issued at a price in
excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company’s articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

34. BEAREISE

REER  AEESFTOERERENE

35.

36.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments
contracted for but not provided for as follows:

AT

2018 2017

—E-NF S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETTT

Acquisition of intangible assets Wi & 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAYE - M= MK 171 327
1,921 2,077

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following transactions with
related parties:

35. BEALXRS

FRBLREIETEERBZARBEAL

RHEBRFRAATESETINME

BRI IS TRR I 5E14 ©

Hif <

Bt F4R A M MR Al RES -

AEBEBB B TIIRS

2018 2017
—E-N\EF Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Salaries paid to a close family member XNFHETEEN
of a director HEHB 47 151

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

36. EXEREE

EXEE

AEEEREAZ T EBRRREALH

Al R AR R R BE

17 5% 38 B2 J fea 7K ¥ 4

4 2 Ean MIRTEE B A RER A KA
MEE @ BESRRAIEDR -

AEEEG N EHHEARBERERN &
BIE - NEARHERSERKTFERST
BB AR ST SR A0 4F BR I AR PR A T RE AR
ERREEAEBLMRREHRKSE
B YREEERENECHERNRRERE
tHH B o

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
—T— \FFf
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 36.

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided
by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings.
Adjusted capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity
less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was 0.2% and
0.3% respectively, calculated as follows:

EXEREE(H)

BEXREE(HE)

REXNED  AEBABERB B XE
RERHEBERRE 2 EE - MEKAEE
NEABRER - BFAEEEERE - &
@%ﬁ$@%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ

REFIREENB B R - NEEARE
BT AERRBEEAN - (FHHFOE
BREXHEEENRDELE °

RZEBE—N\FER_ZT—+tF+_A=+—
AZEARBRELEDHAE0.2%5%0.3% °
AHEMT

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARETT

Total debts Bi5HEER
— Loan from government authority — BT E R 2,350 2,970
2,350 2,970
Shareholders’ equity IR 1,128,121 1,011,027
Gearing ratio BERBEEX 0.2% 0.3%
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BIERER
Financial risk management B RREE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and loan receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade, other and loan receivables. The
Group allows an average credit period of 180 days to its
trade customers. The amounts presented in the balance
sheets are net of loss allowance.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
contract assets, loan receivables and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China, to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution. Trade and bills receivables, contract
assets and other receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. To lower the Group’s exposure to credit
risk, the Group may request deposits from certain of their
customers before delivery of goods.

The Group has trade receivables from sales of products
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit
loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
from initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing days.
The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. On that basis, the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2018 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

37. MBREREE (&)
B35 LB IR (1)

()

=EAER (H)

7 S5 B3 5 5 1 ACHE L o B —
K- AESRBUFAREALE
B o 7 o B B 4 B R A A
BEEEREEN TS L e -

U E Z R - R -~ E
WER - BNEE R RRITHE
BRREEEERBERAMIINER
BERA K B 5L AR B &8 75 & B &
EHESEERR

AEEEREEEMHAETFPENTE
ERE R - WERERAR &
FELEZEFHEE - AREKE
RIFRPBERENETERT - AR
HAEREEA-FHREENERER
%o BWE S REEFRAREME
WRIRZAE T RBEEBEEL -
REEAKEREY 2 EERR
AEEAERERNERAERET
BEPREHZRS -

AEEHAETREEM B REER
FORMH AR EEBREANER
HEEHRUEN - ARERAE
B BHREERFORELTEFE
BHREEEE RUSHERE B
MEESRERRBEERETESR
ANBHER - RFHERHREES
B EHRUEFEREBEBEEE
B B S ARl D 4R - TREIB R X
ERHENNRERRAHEAH
BHERBEEE - BEBEXE
HEREBARRY 8 E P &E B
HENNEBRERZNE B LA
BEER - RUEE > R_F—N
FH-A=1t-HHNESEEEX
ERBREDEENT

TG B REL(CEERNER AR
—T— \FFf
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. BiiERERE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
(@) Credit risk (continued) (@ EEREGE)
Over
Within 6 months to Over 18
6 months 18 months months Total
HBiB6E A
618 A LA Z18{8 A HiE18EA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR%¥Trx AR¥Tx
At 31 December 2018  R=_ZT—/\F+_A
=+—H
Gross carrying amount  BREZAE 232,039 24,357 13,316 269,712
Expected loss rate T HR e 1R =R 0-10% 10-25% 100%
Loss allowance BERERERE 4,056 3,014 13,316 20,386

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

An allowance for impairment is made where there is an
identified loss event which, based on previous experience,
is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash
flows.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

37. M EAREE(H)

Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REVEEEK ()
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1year 1yearbut 2yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HEES i#) —FRE —F#HE MERE
BEE RERLHE RER MER IFR IF#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
2018 —E-N\F
Trade payables B8 5 8RR 31,705 31,705 31,705 - - -
Contract liabilites ~ A#1& & 14,779 14,779 14,779 - - -
Other payables HEMNFIR 280,446 280,446 280,446 - - -
Income tax payable FEFET157: 20,645 20,645 20,645 - - -
Other tax payables ~ H it EAFE 16,754 16,754 16,754 - - -
Dividend payable LS 9,326 9,326 9,326 - - -
Loan from BT EEE R
government
authority 2,350 2,452 1,313 640 499 -
376,005 376,107 374,968 640 499 -
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
AIRARSR —FRAK —F%E MERE
FEE Rengs REX MEA HER hF%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETL ARBTRL ARMTRL ARBTL ARETR
2017 “E-tF
Trade payables ENESER 35,201 35,201 35,201 - - -
Other payables Hit AR 111,697 111,697 111,697 - - -
Income tax payable [EffFTEHE 27,380 27,380 27,380 - - -
Other tax payables — HfhE(F71E 21,236 21,236 21,236 - - -
Dividend payable  FEfIA% 2 1,447 1,447 1,447 - - -
Loan from governmentEi ff i & 3
authority 2,970 3,272 1,525 695 1,052 -
199,931 200,233 198,486 695 1,052 -
EMEIEEREECEERDBRAA

T N\FFR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. BiiERERE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEE P
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its AREFMFEREEIERAETE
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance EEEVHRRENEE - FEH X
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group EERNEFSAEERERESAEE
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate FERR XEEREEENAEE
profile as monitored by the management is set out below: FEFREF R :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
T ES BRI
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Variable rate borrowings ¥ 8 fEE
Loan from government B #EER
authority 1.8% 2,350 3.66% 2,970
The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s RNEE ) EEF RN IERH N B
borrowings are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial KM FE29IER -
statements.
At 31 December 2018, it was estimated that a general RZE—N\F+=-_A=+—8 ' &
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, NHM A . (NEERXR A
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or s NPR1001EE LS - [t iSEBALE
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained B 71 18 5% | R AR 58 5% F1) 55t 4> sk 188 70
profits by RMB23,500 (2017: RMB25,000). AREE23500L(ZF—+F : AR
#25,0007T) °
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined Lt BRESN NBRENEERE
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred EEAEMES  BEst ARZEHN
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to EEFERKREETE - FASKTE
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in 100EESAEEEHEET —FE
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or SEER FHRA R E AR
decrease represents the management’s assessment of FEEFE(E o
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.
(d) Currency risk (d) EHEK
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of AREBFENREHKLSETR - K2
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have DRGUAAN RS - B )

significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or

commodity price risk.

(€)

(f)

Fair value estimation

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards.

37. MEEREE (&)
RS EBREE ()
ERAR
AR E A EE Y AREERRR
AR ERARR -

)

DAL

(i)

RFEER

Z B HAEE NI ERER T
BAFERRARENTET
AN RAFENHE LG - B
15 K TE A B PR 3 A BUE
MAERERER  ARERE
SR EAKESRTAD A=
o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AR¥F T ARETTT
Level 3 Recurring fair value S£=EBHREEHAFE
measurements iTE
Financial assets at fair value  1ZAFEE ABZH
through profit or loss WG EE 23 571,612 -

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year.
For transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see
(i) below.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the year.

REAR - KEURTEAES
—RZER R EER -
—EAGEBAREHATX
(if)

AEEREARERERAT
EEREBNHEARE LK
-

EMEEEREACEEROHERAT

—T— \FFf
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B E kT (E)
Financial risk management (continued) B i L B (4]

()  Fair value estimation (continued)

(f)

DR (&)

()  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () RXFEERE)
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded E—BR:RERMHELERS
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, MeEBmTAGINAREEZ
and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based PTETR URARGHAER
on quoted market prices at the end of the year. The AHEEZES)NAFTESR
quoted market price used for financial assets held by RERMMIGMETE - K&
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments BB EESE AN TSR
are included in level 1. BRBATEAE ZEIAES
WINAE—ER -
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that FoER: WINIERMIS L
are not traded in an active market (for example, over- REM e T E (I - HINT
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation ATE)MRATFERZAGHER
technigues which maximise the use of observable MEE - ZZHERMREME
market data and rely as little as possible on entity- AAESRmEEIE - YHRER
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 2 ﬁ?ﬁﬁ‘a’% FEME o Wt E
to fair value an instrument are observable, the NTEEMHEEFEREA
instrument is included in level 2. %{?in’/]—J&E%—E B ET A
WHIAE ZER
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not FZER: W EHXZEEE
based on observable market data, the instrument is B A BRI 3E IR IR A B R T 5
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity HEEE MIBEAIAERT
securities. AR=ZEH o bAR ETRA
BHEZIER
(i)  Fair value measurements using significant (i) f/ﬁEETT%E?TF/\ﬁ%

unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year:

FTERFE(E=ER)
T%zﬁﬂﬁi?ﬂ”*l‘i&lﬁ
E;]z*z :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Opening balance FHEH - -
Reclassified from available-for-sale B EHEENBEE

financial assets BN 483,000 =

Acquisitions g 967,000 —

Disposals HE (885,000) —

Net gain on financial assets at RATEF AR
fair value through profit or loss BT B E R F S 6,612 -
Closing balance F R 571,612 =
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
(f)  Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

The above instruments included in level 3 represent
wealth management products, both principal
and non-principal guaranteed, issued by financial
institution in the PRC which was classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit of loss.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The key unobservable input is the expected
annualized return rate of the financial product which
is determined by the financial institution.

If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank deposits
had been 100 basis points higher/lower than the
prevailing interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit would have been
approximately RMB517,000 higher/lower (2017: nil).

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2018 and 2017
may be categorised as follows:

38.

s b e ()

(f)

| MBEBEE(E)

DFEME (&)

(i)

77\‘/#?:%‘;7 o] 3 2R gy A Z 15
FTEAFE(E=/ER) (&)
tx%:ﬁ@%@%MIﬁﬁ
PESRMEETNIENE
o BIERARIERA - ZFE
TES AR AT EFAER

WIS EE »

RER - F—BHE - F_ER
NREZERBLEES -

TETABREHABE SR
HEEENBHF LRGSR -

st BARTT 17 SRR A R IR 1T
M= EF T BACOME EE -

mATA E b B e REF & - B
RS TAIb == | R UN

R#¥517,000T( =8 — 4 -
) o

=

MBEERVERBZRERNS
2 HBE

AEER T —

NER-ZT—+F+—H

=t BERNMBEERMBEEERD
BREMEFR N XAt T IA 5 4R -

2018 2017
—E-N\F =— 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENTHEE
profit or loss 571,612 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ENTEEE - 483,000
Loan and receivables (including cash B EWFIE
and bank balances) (BiER e RIIRTTER) 678,383 466,360
Financial liabilities 3=
Financial liabilities measured REENAY BN EEE
at amortised cost 421,816 227,045
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. E#tBiFHRK

39.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019.

EZgR T -NAF=A-TNLBEH
BT S SRR -

EMEEEREACEEROHERAT
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LEMBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

AEERFECTIBRERZY B RE BERE

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published BIBEE 7 ¥4  EELBEMEHINOT -
audited financial statements is set out below.
Operating Results RS
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T—+F ZTRE 1% —T-pmE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT
Revenue \ 647,672 645,303 654,119 539,134 601,715
Cost of sales SHEMAR (115,554) (114,250) (135,266) (108,352) (115,213)
Gross profit EA 532,118 531,053 518,853 430,782 486,502
Other income and net gains PO 6
or losses Eﬁiﬁ‘}%%ﬁ 58,188 24,008 16,135 23,913 18,309
Distribution and selling costs DHRHERT (375,480) (335,128) (327,202) (271,170) (276,949)
Administrative expenses THEY (28,450) (47,165) (40,400) (45,534) (67,901)
Profit from operations S R 186,376 172,768 167,386 137,991 159,961
Finance costs %ﬁéﬁﬁw (53) = (101) (209) (297)
Profit before income tax B BT S5 AR Al 186,323 172,768 167,285 137,782 159,664
Income tax expense FiSH (25,107) (28,366) (24,615) (20,144) (26,879)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ FRAARHER A
owners of the Company FE(EER 161,216 144,402 142,670 117,638 132,785
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\E —T—+F —E—RFE —Z—1 —Z—E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETIL ARBTTL AREBTT ARETL
Bearer biological assets TLREWEE 11,745 11,440 10,844 5,557 5,169
Property, plant and equipment - BE R 156,591 166,133 172,672 134,986 144,307
Prepared lease payments BN LA E 15,068 15,520 15,974 16,428 16,882
Construction in progress T2 67,588 44127 23,271 74,557 66,781
Intangible assets BVEE - - - 659 2,519
Deferred tax assets FIEHIEE E 944 316 = - =
Current assets MENEE 1,302,905 1,000,536 852,495 675,807 548,008
Current liabilities mEEE (375,484) (200,083) (180,198) (152.941) (151,239)
Non-current liabilities FEREaE (46,332) (26,962) (28,433) (31,098) (26,110)
Net assets BEFME 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955 606,317
Share capital % 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves e 1,077,000 955,002 810,600 667,930 550,292
Total equity BREs 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955 606,317

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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